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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2019. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
Trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Grove Wood Academy Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 4 to 11 years serving a catchment area in
Rayleigh. It has a pupil capacity of 630 and had a roll of 630 in the school census on 16 May 2019.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The
Trustees of Grove Wood Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Grove Wood Academy Trust. The Academy is also known
as Grove Wood Primary School. '

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included ih the Reference and Administrative Details on
page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
No qualifying third party indemnity provisions or qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions exist.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Members may appoint Trustees through such process as they may determine. The Trust operates a majority
/ minority model of governance; the majority of Trustees are directly appointed, based upon a broad range of
skills, life experience and knowledge. A minority of Trustees are elected, primarily from the parent body. There
shall be a minimum of 2 Parent Trustees — these shall be either elected or appointed as determined by the
Trustees. The Trustees may appoint co-opted Trustees provided they have not themselves been so appointed.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Induction and training of Trustees may be in house and / or at specific external training events. All new Trustees
are enrolled on induction training organised and delivered by appropriate training services providers.
Supplementary training is targeted at the role(s) and responsibilities of each individual Trustee as appropriate.

Page 3



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Organisational Structure
The Board comprises 8 appointed Trustees and 4 elected Trustees at 31 August 2019.
The Board is headed by a Chair and currently has three Vice Chair positions.

Two standing committees cover the main business areas of the Trust — Assets (Finance, HR & Premises) and
Standards (Curriculum and any other matter with a school wide focus).

Decisions affecting the vision, aims and ethos of the school — along with character, ‘brand’ and development -
are reserved for Members of the Grove Wood Academy Trust. Those on the Governing Board, which sits below
the Academy Trust Members Board, have overall responsibility for holding the school to account for progress
and attainment. All other decisions are delegated appropriately and responsibly

The Headteacher is an ex-officio member of the Governing Board and along with the remainder of the Senior
Leadership Team, advises the Board on daily and longer-term operational matters at each Board meeting (held
roughly 6 weeks apart throughout the academic year). They also contribute to discussion and decision making

. on long term / strategic matters.

Decision making is done through face to face discussion at Board meetings with decisions being ratified following
proposal of a course of action and, where necessary, subsequent resolution and show of hands.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the Trustees and members of the Senior Leadership Team. Trustees are
not remunerated in their role of Trustee. The Board will set the pay range of the executive key management
personnel according to the published recommended pay ranges for the size of the school. Any amendments to
this will be agreed at Assets Committee level and authorised / ratified at Board level.

The Board is responsible for the Headteacher’'s Annual Performance Review and will use this to inform any
subsequent pay increment (within the agreed pay range). In the same way the Headteacher is responsible for
the Annual Performance Reviews of the remaining members of the Senior Management Team and will use those
reviews to inform any subsequent pay increment (within the agreed pay range).

Trade Union facility time
No employees were relevant union officials during the year.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Grove Wood Primary School is the founder member of Grove Wood Academy Trust of which currently there are
no other members. As a school we work closely with a number of other local schools and we are active members
of two teaching School Alliances, SETSA (South Essex Teaching School Alliance) and SETI (South Essex
Teaching Institute). Through these partnerships we are able to access professional development and training
opportunities as well as school to school support and initial teaching trainees.

Page 4



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

The Academy Trust exists to provide its students with an education, through an enjoyable, broad and balanced
curriculum, which helps them reach their full potential.

The Academy Trust also seeks to involve students and the local community in a wide range of extra-curricular
activities; both sporting and non- sporting.

The Academy Trust seeks to be at the heart of the Community and seeks to engage with that Community
including stakeholders, neighbours, local businesses and other educational establishments and agencies.

Objects and Aims

The Academy Trust's objects are to establish, maintain, carry on, manage and develop an outstanding school
offering pupils the very best opportunities through the provision of a rich, broad and balanced curriculum.

The Academy Trust also aims to promote, for the benefit of the inhabitants of the area in which the Academy is
situated, the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of
such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the
condition of life of the said inhabitants.

Public Benefit
The Academy Trust seeks to give its students the best education possible.

The Mission Statement is as follows:

At Grove Wood Academy Trust we are dedicated to achieving and celebrating success for all. We believe that a
happy child is a successful one, so we work together to present a curriculum that is exciting, challenging and
enjoyable. We are committed to ensuring that every child feels valued and to providing high quality learning
opportunities to enable every child to succeed. By working in close partnership with parents and the community
we endeavour to ensure that all of our pupils make an excellent start to their education.

The Academy Trust also serves the local Community by providing resources and facilities for various activities
for people of all ages. These include regular sessions in Tai Chi, Aerobics, British Sign Language, Buddhist
Meditation, Rainbows and Brownies as well as others. The school is also used for charitable events and offers
facilities for local meetings such as the Police Commissioner, Friends of Cherry Orchard Park and the local
Children’s Centre.

The Trustees have complied with their duty under section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to public
benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission and the Trustees have paid due regard to this guidance
in deciding what activities the charitable company should undertake. '

Page 5



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The whole school objectives are articulated in the School Development Plan and aim to provide the focus for the
key areas of whole school improvement with a focus on outcomes, provision and safeguarding.
The priorities for 2018/19 were:

* To continue raising the rates of progress and the standards in reading, writing and maths for
all pupils, including those who are disadvantaged

e To provide High Quality Teaching across the, whole curriculum ensuring that pupils are presented
with a curriculum that is vibrant, enlivening and memorable and that homework is used effectively

» To develop appfoaches to reading and spélling

o To ensure that Year 4 ére prépared for the National Maths check .
e To provide a wide range of opportunities for all staff to develop their professional practice.,

e To provfde opporturﬁties td work with and sUpport the local corhmt]nity

e To support_the development of leadership at all levels - including go;/ernahce / subject leadership

e To embed support for SEND Pupils

e To continue developing school to school structures with a view to expanding the current MAT

Page 6



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Impact -

Over the course of the year, the school addressed the areas identified in the School Development Plan very
effectively. Each of the strategic targets was broken down into short term targets, actions were put into place and
progress against them monitored by members of the Senior Leadership Team and Governing Board. The School
was graded ‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted in June 2017. A summary of the Ofsted findings is shown below.




GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

STRATEGIC REPORT
- Achievements and performance

Key Performance Indicators 2018-19

EYFS 76.7% GLD
Year 1 83.3% Phonics Pass
Expected (EXS) Greater Depth (GDS)
Year 2 Reading 79.8% 31.5%
Year 2 Writing 69.7% 25.8%
Year 2 Maths 719% 34.8%
Year 2 RWM Combined 652 20.2%
Expected (EXS) Greater Depth (GDS)
Year 6 Reading 74.7% 28.6%
Year 6 Writing 90.1% 38.5%
Year 6 Maths : 87.9% 34.1%
Year 6 RWM Combined 68.1% 20.9%

EXS — Expected Score _
GDS - Greater Depth Score (more able pupils)

In Key Stage 1 (KS1) reading, writing and maths results show that the School (65.2%) is working above
National outcomes (65%).

In Key Stage 2 (KS2) reading, writing and maths results show that the School (68.1%) is working aboVe Essex
(65.9%) and National (64.8%) outcomes at expected level. At Greater Depth level the School (20.9%) is
working above Essex (11.4%) and National (10.5%) outcomes.

Page 8



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continuéd)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Pupil attendance is better than the national average and the school has been oversubscribed in recent years.
The school carefully plans and manages its finances having due regard to the Schoo! Development Plan and the
material requirements of the school.

The school created a new Art room to encourage interest and participation in the subject.

The school also continued the programme to replace old lights with new LED lighting to save energy. A new
access control system was introduced to improve safeguarding and provide more security to school buildings.

The school has done all things possible to maximise its income through lettings and fundraising. In addition to
this the school regularly reviews all its contracts in order to achieve best value.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries the Governmg Board has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies. ’

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year income amounted to £2.9m (2018: £2.7m).

The principal funding source is the General Annual Grant (GAG) received from government which amounted to
£2.1m (2018: £2m). Unrestricted income of £340k (2018: £245k) represents the school’s non-statutory income
generation which is derived from activities including catering and music tuition.

Overall expenditure during the year amounts to £3.1m showing a very slight increase compared to the 2018
figure of £3m. Management continues to pay close attention to staff costs which represent the school's largest
expense. Actuarial losses on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) of £270k (2018: gains of £325k)
were primarily caused due to changes in actuarial assumptions, most notably in terms of the discount rate. The -
net movement in funds before actuarial losses was a £165k (2018: £263k) deficit which after taking into account
the deficit on the pension scheme amounted to £435k (2018: £62k surplus).

The School has financed the creation of an Art Room, continued the LED light replacement programme,
introduced a new access control system and made improvements to the external metal fencing resulting in an
increase in fixed assets, before depreciation, of £78k. Within Unrestricted funds, a designated fund has been
created to fund future capital expenditure for a new heating system, further toilet refurbishments and the
continuation of the LED lighting programme.

The school contributes to two employee pension schemes, one for teachers and the other, the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS obligation will remain as a long-term commitment for the school although
the situation would undoubtedly improve given a better economic investment climate. The notes to these financial
statements contain detailed descriptions about the two pension schemes and the investment strategies, as well
as the background to the shortfall in the LGPS and the fact that it is ultimately supported by government.

Page 9



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The school continues to enjoy good liquidity and held cash balances of £829k (2018: £722k) at the year end.
Other current assets comprise mainly of prepayments and accrued income. Creditors include funds received in
advance for the 2019/20 academic year for Universal Free School Meals and amounts due to HMRC for PAYE
on employees’ salaries, and contributions due to the two pension funds. Net current assets are positive at £686k
(2018: £589k) and reinforce the Trustees’ belief that the Trust’s financial obligations can be met as they fall due.

As a result of slightly increased expenditure and the actuarial losses on the LGPS liability, net assets decreased *
from £6m to £5.6m. The school is fortunate to currently be in a strong financial position. We enjoy good liquidity
and have a good level of reserves.

Reserves Policy

It is the policy of the Academy to seek to build and maintain reserves equivalent to 2-3 months’ wages
(approximately £300,000 - £450,000). Such a level is required in order to protect the academy against short term
unforeseen circumstances such as loss of key personnel or assets.

The current level of unrestricted general reserves (calculated excluding the pension reserve, designated fund
and fixed asset fund) is £496k (2018: £387k). In addition the designated fund of £190k is earmarked for capital
projects in 2018/19 — these are the full replacement of the school’s boilers (£165k), toilet refurbishments (£10k)
and LED lighting programme (15k).

At 31 August 2019 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted general funds £496,151
Designated £190,000
Restricted:
Fixed asset funds £6,921,898
GAG £Nil
Pension reserve (£2,013,000)
Other restricted general funds £Nil
£5,595,049 -

Investment Policy

The Academy seeks to get the best return on its balances but having due regard to security, accessibility and
cash flow. If the Academy is in a position to make any cash investments then these will be approved by the
Trustees beforehand and full consideration to social, environmental and ethical factors will be given.

Page 10



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
A Risk Register exists and is reviewed on a regular basis. Procedures have been established to manage those
risks. All staff and volunteers receive regular safeguarding training.

The principal risks of the Academy are:

Safeguarding of children compromised .
Pupil loss / funding loss/ sudden change of political administration, policy or direction
Excess of expenses over income

Insufficient funding for planned budget

Fraudulent activity

Fire, flood or other disaster

Lack of coverage and succession at senior management level

Trustees inexperienced in the role

Lack of staff through sickness

School fails to take account of local, national and regulatory issues or policy impact
School fails to make provision for litigious issues

School loses touch with SEN and/or employment law

Increased repayments (or full repayment) to the deficit in the pension scheme may be required.

The Risk Register is reviewed by the Assets Committee and the Standards Committee periodically. Risks are
RAG (Red, Amber Green) rated and any required actions taken to mitigate these risks are discussed and
actioned.

Safeguarding is under constant review by the Senior leadership Team and all staff members as well as
by named Trustees. These reviews are reported back to full Trustee Board meetings.

-FUNDRAISING
The Academy does not undertake formal fundraising itself.

Fundraising for the school is undertaken by the Parents Association of Grove Wood Primary School (PAGWPS).
PAGWPS is a registered charity.

The Academy is satisfied that PAGWPS fundraising conforms to recognised standards and the Academy is
consulted about all fundraising events beforehand.

The Academy is satisfied that the public, including vulnerable people, are protected from unreasonably intrusive
or persistent fundraising approaches and undue pressure to donate.

Page 11



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

Plans for future periods are directly linked to the School Development Plan detailed under ‘Objectives, Strategies
and Activities'. In addition to this the Assets Committee meets regularly and, during these meetings, the Asset
Management Plan is reviewed so that on-going maintenance costs are budgeted for and future costs anticipated
and planned for.

The priorities for 2019-20 are:

2019 - 20 Strategic Targets

A1. To continue raising the rates of progress and the standards in reading, writing and maths for all pupils,
including those who are disadvantaged

A2. To provide High Quality Teaching of Reading across the school.

A3. To ensure recording in books, assessment and feedback practices are highly effective and provide pupils
with timely and valuable ways to improve their learning

A4. To maximise the curriculum ensuring that it is vibrant, enlivening and memorable.

Ongoing Whole School Priorities

1. To continue to encourage high levels of attendance including the attendance of disadvantaged pupils and
pupils who have Special Educational Needs and /or disabilities

2 To ensure that Pupil Premium Spending is effectively targeted to close the gap and ensure even more pupils
reach the higher standards

| 3 To ensure that Sports Premium is used effectively to promote healthy lifestyles, sporting excellence and -
:| opportunity for all.

4 To re-energise the pup|ls growth mindset, promote positive learnmg behaviours , independence resilience and
risk taking

5 To support the development of leadership at all levels - including governance - and create a model of
succession planning to ensure that the school has capacity for sustained improvement

6 To support staff in achieving a greater work life balance

7 To continue developing school to school structures with a view to expanding the current MAT

8 To strengthen our links with the community, locally, nationally and globally through a focus on cultures, beliefs
and ways of life from around the world.

9. To raise knowledge and awareness of national issues eg. Elections, Referendums etc...

10. To ensure that all members of school community are equipped to deal with issues relating to safeguarding,
child protection and extremism and that systems and procedures are robust

11. To continue to review communication systems ensuring that lines of communication are clear to all
stakeholders

12. To work in collaboration with Teaching School Alliances, local schools, services and agencies

13. To ensure the school continues to provide value for money

14. To celebrate and reward successes and achievements of all

Page 12



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

No funds are held as custodian trustee.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
In so far as the Trustees, being the Companies Act Directors, are aware:
» there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware
o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as Trustees/Directors to make themselves

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Governing Board, as the
Company Directors, on 11 December 2019 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

G Blakesley

Chair of Trustees
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Grove Wood Academy Trust Limited
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Governing Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Grove
Wood Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. He is also responsible for reporting to the
Governing Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Governing Board has formally met 5 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Governing Board was as follows:

Full Board Meetings

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
G Blakesley (Chair) ' 3 5
R Foster 4 5
'M Heathcote (Vice Chair) 5 5
S Cooper 3 5
J Douglas 3 3
R Green (Headteacher & Accounting Officer) 3 5
F Hooper 5 5
A Reynolds (Vice Chair) 3 5
M Barney from 01.06.19 0 0
G Pritchard from 01.06.19 0 0
S Fernon from 01.04.19 1 1
N Pitt from 01.04.19 1 1
M Barnes from 01.04.19 1 1

Page 14



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Board actively monitors and evaluates its performance on an on-going basis and proposes, discusses and
implements change (where necessary) with effect from each subsequent Board meeting. These changes may
be brought about by identified areas for development, suggestions for improvement of already effective
procedures or through changes in regulation / requirement brought about by revisions of the Academies Financial
Handbook, ESFA requirements or Government legislation. Trustees also actively discuss, at the end of every
meeting, what impact their discussions have had or will have on the education and life chances of the pupils at
the school. '

Data used includes (but is not limited to) that generated by the DfE; Ofsted; ESFA, the Local Authority; gov.uk
benchmarking data; internally generated school data. Data from third parties is externally generated and verified.
Internal data is generated by staff and moderated and challenged by senior leaders. Trustees are confident that
data used in discussions is accurate and base their discussions accordingly.

The current Chair is a DfE-accredited National Leader of Governance and keeps Board function and conduct:
under on-going review. A skills audit is issued to Trustees at the end of the summer term each year and the
results are discussed at the beginning of the following academic year. These discussions are used to identify
gaps in knowledge and skill set(s) and inform future Trustee recruitment strategies.

Page 15



GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Assets Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Board. Its purpose is to monitor and make
strategic decisions around policies and functions of the core business areas of HR., Finance and Premises
development, management and maintenance. The remit and Terms of Reference for this committee are as
follows: ‘ '

1. In consultation with the School Business Manager and Headteacher, to draft the first formal budget plan
of the financial year

2. To approve the budget on behalf of the Board, if in exceptional circumstance, it is not possible to convene
a full Governing Board final budget approval meeting prior to the deadline for budget submission.

3. To establish and maintain an up to date 3 year financial plan

4. To consider and evaluate a budget position statement including virement decisions at least termly and
to report significant anomalies from the anticipated position to the Governing Board.

5. To ensure that the school operates within the Financial guidelines of the Academies Finance Handbook

and the Academies Accounts Direction

To monitor expenditure of all voluntary funds kept on behalf of the Governing Board.

To annually review charges and remissions policies and expenses policies.

To make decisions in respect of service agreements

To make decisions on expenditure following recommendations from other committees.

0. To ensure, as far as is practical, that that Health and Safety issues are appropriately prioritised.

1. To determine whether sufficient funds are available for pay increments as recommended by the

Headteacher

12. In light of the Headteacher Performance Management Group's recommendations, to determine whether
sufficient funds are available for increments.

13. To advise the Governing Board on priorities, including Health and Safety, for the maintenance and
development of the school’s premises.

14. To have oversight of the Asset Management Plan

15. To monitor and review and evaluate all aspects of maintenance, improvement or repair to the buildings,
grounds and plant.

16. To ensure that the character of the school’s buildings and site are retained.

17. In consultation with the Headteacher and the Finance portfolio, to oversee premises-related funding bids.

18. To monitor and approve appropriate expenditure relating to Capital Grants.

19. To appoint architects, builders, ground maintenance teams, surveyors etc. according to the established
procedures laid down by the school Trustees and monitor all aspects of their work

20. To oversee arrangements, including health and safety, for the use of the school premises by outside
users, subject to Governing Board Policy

21. To report all aspects of improvement and requirements for the smooth running of the school in relation
to the premises to Trustees.

22. To make recommendations to the finance portfolio on the needs and requirements of the premises.

23. To receive reports from the Site Manager and, through the Board, delegate powers for day-to-day matters
for the Headteacher.

24. To draft and keep under review the staffing structure in consultation with the Headteacher and the
Finance Committee

25. To approve procedure for recruitment and appointment of staff

TveNo
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

26. To consider applications from staff for secondments or leave of absence

27. To oversee the process leading to staff reductions

28. To follow established procedure when advertising, selecting and appointing new Members of staff

29. To keep under review staff work/life balance, working conditions and wellbeing, including the monitoring
of absence

30. To draft and recommend for adoption, the procedures for dealing with discipline and grievance.

31. To establish and review a Performance Management policy for all staff

32. To establish and review the Pay Policy for all staff

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Assets Meetings

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
G Blakesley (Chair) 5 6
R Foster (Vice Chair) 4 6
M Heathcote (Vice Chair) 1 6
S Cooper 0 6
J Douglas (until 03.03.19) 1 3
R Green (Headteacher & Accounting Officer) 5 6
F Hooper 6 6
A Reynolds 3 6
M Barney (from 01.06.19) 1 1
G Pritchard (from 01.06.19) 0 1
S Fernon (from 01.04.19) 1 2
N Pitt (from 01.04.19) 2 2
M Barnes (from 01.04.19) 2 2
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Standards Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Governing Board.

Its purpose is to monitor and

make strategic decisions, primarily around curriculum development and delivery and make recommendations to
the Board regarding new initiatives and significant changes to or departures from established curriculum practice.
The committee also has a wider remit to oversee and monitor any area of school life where a ‘standard’ may be
applied i.e. standards of behaviour, conduct, communication, website compliance etc. The remit and Terms of
Reference for this committee are as follows:

1.
2.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

To review, monitor and evaluate the curriculum offer.

To ensure on behalf of the Governing Board that its strategic responsibility to raise standards is acted
upon.

To review and analyse the performance of the school, against national and local indicators, and to
advise the Governing Board on any action required in order to sustain improvement.

To ensure that the School Development Plan reflects the requirement to raise standards, and to
monitor and evaluate it accordingly.

To monitor the implementation of any Action Plan resulting from external reviews of the school (e.g.
Ofsted inspection or local School Effectiveness Partners), in order to maintain progress.

To establish, with assistance of the Headteacher and subject co-coordinators, information about how
the curriculum is taught, evaluated and resourced. ‘

To make recommendations to the Assets Committee on resources that are needed to meet the needs
of the whole curriculum, and the sustainability of the non-statutory elements.

To receive regular reports from the Headteacher and/or Senior Leadership Team on the quality of
teaching and learning, to identify areas for improvement, and to ensure that any necessary action is
taken to maximize outcomes for pupils.

To ensure that annual assessment and examination arrangements comply with national requirements.
To ensure that the requirements of children with special needs are met, as laid out in the Code of
Practice, and receive termly reports from the Headteacher/SENCO and an annual report from the SEN
governor.

To regularly review and develop the assessment policy and to ensure that the policy is operating
effectively.

To develop and review policies identified within the school's policy review programme and in
accordance with its delegated powers (e.g. sex education and pupil behaviour/discipline).

To ensure that other relevant policies such as behaviour and attendance, which support learning and
improvements in attainment are in place.

To ensure that all children have equal opportunities.

To monitor the school’s publicity, public presentation and relationships with the wider community

To oversee arrangements for educational visits, including the appointment of a named co-ordinator.
To identify and celebrate pupil achievements.

To monitor the impact of Pupil Premium Funding and Sport premium on the achievement and
attainment of pupils.

To ensure that the Pupil Premium Funding is spent appropriately and that this information is easily
accessible (eg. on the school’s website).

To monitor and advise the Board by written report each term on the following:

data on attainment and achievement for all of the trust's academies
school improvement work and leadership

overall performance of the academies

leadership standards

governance effectiveness

a0 ow
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

20. To monitor and advise the Board on:

SEN and inclusion
partnership working
admissions

safeguarding arrangements

oo

To monitor the academies statutory requirements in relation to the curriculum offer and other curriculum

issues such as spiritual, moral, social and cultural learning.

21. To monitor educational needs of the pupils attending the Trust's academies.

22. To monitor the attendance rates of Trust academies and ensure that there are procedures in place to
fulfil statutory requirements, especially regarding children missing from education.

23. To review and recommend for adoption the Trust’s policies in relation to its curriculum statement.

24. To monitor and review the achievement of strategic objectives, in particular the overview of
performance against quantitative and qualitative benchmarks for key indicators/outcomes and the
Ofsted framework, providing challenge and recommending remedial actions where required in line with
the academy development plan.

- 25. To receive progress reports on the implementation of post-Ofsted action plans and any other formal
evaluation reports related to the quality and achievement of learning across the Trust to further inform
and develop the trust’s quality improvement plans and strategies.

26. To review outcomes, identifying significant changes in performance, emerging trends and risks in
relation to future performance of each academy.
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Standards Meetings
- Meetings
Trustee ' attended

G Blakesley (Chair)

R Foster (Vice Chair)

M Heathcote (Vice Chair)
S Cooper

J Douglas (until 03.03.19)
R Green (Headteacher & Accounting Officer)
F Hooper

A Reynolds

M Barney (from 01.06.19)
G Pritchard (from 01.06.19)
S Fernon from 01.04.19

N Pitt from (01.04.19)

M Barnes (from 01.04.19)

B NN o I o S N i L = - =S

Out of a
possible

NN I =1 S I N O N O N
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcome achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Governing Board where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by: '

Ensuring that all contracts were regularly reviewed

Ensuring that several quotations were obtained for large purchases

Ensuring that small purchases are compared for price and value

Arranging training for staff where required (assessed by Performance Management Review)

Requiring feedback on the usefulness of training courses to ensure value for money

Reviewing and streamlining staff where possible

Ensuring that income from the letting of premises is maximised

Ensuring that grant funding is sought wherever possible

Ensuring that key staff maintain links with other schools (e.g. Business Managers' Network) so that good
_ practice can be shared and contracts benchmarked

s Seeking to have jobs which may have previously been outsourced brought ‘in house’ (e.g. data cabling,
painting, general repairs)

The school's main resource is its staff. In order to achieve best value we hold Performance Management Reviews
for each member of staff at least once a year. This review is an opportunity for the staff member and the school
to review individuals’ performances, recognise their successes and highlight any areas for development.

Staff development can take place in many ways and costly, external training courses are not always the answer.
This year, again we have hosted training sessions ourselves whilst selling any ‘spare’ places to other schools.
We have also linked up with other schools to share training and knowledge between ourselves. In addition to this
we have held ‘in house’ sessions where our expert staff train lesser experienced staff.

We have developed a detailed programme of spending for the Pupil Premium Grant received. This is tailored to
meet each child's needs and is evaluated carefully to ensure that the outcomes are successful.
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact shouid they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Grove Wood Academy Trust
‘Limited for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Trustees’ Report
and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Governing Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Governing
Board is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy
Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the
date of approval of the Trustees’ Report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Governing Board.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Governing Board;

e regular reviews by the Assets Committee of reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes; X

o setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

e clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

¢ delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and identification and management of risks.
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GROVE WOOD ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Governing Board has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint
an internal auditor. However the Trustees have appointed MHA Macintyre Hudson, the external auditor, to
perform additional checks

The external auditor’s role includes performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems.

On a periodic basis the auditor reports to the Governing Board, through the Assets Committee on the operation
of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Governing Board’ financial responsibilities.

- REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

¢ the work of the external auditor;
o the work of the Chair of the Assets Committee (Finance)

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their reviews of the system of _
internal control and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Board on Y| December 2019 and signed on the Board’s
behalf by:

G Blakesley R Green

Chair of Trustees ’ Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

N

As Accountmg Officer of Grove Wood Academy Trust | have consudered my responsibility to notify the Academy:

Trust Board of Trustees and the Education:& Skills Funding Agéncy (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Educatlon As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the reqwrements of the Academles Fmancnal Handbook 2018.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to |dent|fy any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material -non-compliance with the terms and. conditions of fundlng
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

<

o

| conf irm that no lnstances of material lrregularlty |mpropnety or funding.non- compllance have been dlscovered
to date. If any instances are‘identified after the date of this statement, these WI|| be notified to the Board of
‘Trustees and ESFA } " . :

w A .

R Green .
Accountlng Officer

" 1lrenq

ra



" STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES ‘ ‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 . :

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of. company law) are

responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report.and the financial “statements in accordance with the Academies

Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accountlng Standards

_(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng Practice) and appllcable law and regulatlons.

. i ¢ 3

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare fi nancnal statements for each financial year. Under company Iaw

-the Trustees must not approve the fi nancial’ statements. unless' they are satisfied that they g|ve a true and fair .

view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
" including its income and expendlture for that perlod In preparing these fmancual ‘'statements, the Trustees are

required t to: . _ . e ' . .
o Select smtable accountlng policies and then apply them con5|stently,
e ' observe the methods and pnncnples -of the' Charmes SORP 2015 and the Academles Accounts Direction )
2018'to 2019; : . . *
. .make judgments and accountlng est|mates that are reasonable and prudent ] '
- . -state whether applicable UK Accountlng Standards have been followed subject to any material departures
. : disclosed and explained in the fmanmal statements;  ° .
" _» e prepare ‘the financial statements on.the goung concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the

i ’ M

oo The Trustees are responS|bIe for keeping adequate accountlng records that’are suff|c1ent to show and explain
‘ ) - the charltable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at t any time the financial position of
. the charitable company and enablé them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies'Act
" 2006. They are also responsmle for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking

é‘ reasonable steps for the preventlon and detection of fraud and other |rregular|t|es "
(S o LI - P '- ! - )
o 't The Trustees .are responsible for ensurmg that in its conduct- and operatlon the charitable company applies
fi nancual and other controls, which ‘conform with. the requirements: both of propriety -and of good financial
management. They are also respon3|ble for ensurmg grants recelved from ESFA/DfE have been applled for the *

purposes mtended . v - L _ o

. + _ charitable’company will contmue in business. :

v

»

-

. e

v
' v } t -

The Trustees are ‘responsible for the maintenance: and mtegnty of the corporate and flnan0|al |nformat|on
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatlon and

) dlssemlnatlon of financial statements may differ from Ieglslatlon in other jurisdictions. )

t : - -

Approved by order of the members of the board’of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

L3

GBIakesley . ~ ) '
Cha:r of Trustees , ) . :
] Date H/\’Ll'Lotq -
‘ . t -~
] ‘ B
© ot ’ . ' Page2s . e
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INDEPENDENT: AUDITORS" REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF GROVE
WOOD ACADEMY TRUST

¢

+

Opinion .

We have audited the financial statements of Grove Wood Academy Trust (the academy trust) for the.year
ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of srgnrfrcant accounting policies.. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applrcable law, United Kingdom Accountrng
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Acceptéd Accounting- Practice), including ‘Financial Reporting Standard
102 'The Financial Reportlng Standard applicable'in the"UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015
and the Academles Accounts Drrectron 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Fundlng Agency ‘

In our oprnlon the financial statements ’ 4 ' ‘ ot » .-{:
¢ ‘givea true and fair .view of the state of the Academy Trusts affairs ‘as at- 31 August 2019 and of |ts
_,lncomrng resources and application of resources, mcludrng its income and expendrture for the year then
. ended; ' -~ . . - .. . .
o have been properly prepared in accordance with. Unlted Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountlng
Practrce and oo, : r B :
. have been.prepared in accordance with-the requrrements of the Companres Act 2006 the Charrtres SORP
: 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to, 2019 issued by the Educatton & Skllls Fundlng
o -Agency .
¢ ¢ ! ' ’ ’ . '
Basis for opinion o . '

L} -

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law: Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for.the audit
-of the financial statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Academy Trust in-accordance with
the ethical requwements that"are relevant to our audit of:the financial statements .in the United Kingdom,
mcludrng the Financial Reportlng Council's Ethical ,Standard, .and we ‘- have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requrrements We believe that the audlt evtdence we have obtalned is

suffrcrent and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.

.

Conclusions relating to going concern . . i .

A
.k " “« &
* L

We have nothing to report'in respect of the followrng matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where: . ‘

. ‘the Trustees' use of the gorng concern basrs of accountrng in the preparation of the frnancral statements is
“ not approprrate or ) . .

‘e - the Trustees have not dlsclosed in the financial statements any rdentrfred material uncertarntles that may

‘cast S|gnrf cant doubt ‘about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going’concern basis of
accountlng for a perrod of at Ieast twelve months from the date when the fi nancral statements are
authorised for issue. ,- ) . .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF GROVE
WOOD ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED) . , .

Other information K

. :
The other information comprises the information includéd in the Annual Report, other than the financials
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon Other information includes Reference and Administrative details,
Trustees, Report, incorporating the‘_Strategrc Report and the Directors Report, the Governance Statement, the
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance ‘and the Trustees Responsibilities Statement. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the' other information and; except to the extent otherwise expllcrtly stated
in our report ‘we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connectlon with our audrt of the financial statements our responsrblllty is to read the other information and, in
doing, s6, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the. financial statements or our
knowledge obtained inthe audit or. otherwise appears to be materially misstated." If we identify. such material
.inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to. determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the-
work weshave performed, we conclude that there is a material mrsstatement of this other information, we are
reqwred to'report that fact.

We have nothlng to report |n thrs regard. . ' .

oo '
L 4

Opmlon on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
‘-

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information: given in the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Strategrc Report and the Directors Report)

§ for the financial year for Wthh the financial statements are prepared is, consistent wrth the financial

' statements; and . . : S o

. the “Strategic Report and the Directors Report have been prepared in accordance with applrcable Iegal
requ;rements ) . ¢ o ’

X

'M_atters on which we are requtred to report by exception .

. : .o ¢
In the Ilght of our knowledge and understandlng of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified materlal misstatements in the Trustees Report including the Strategic
Report : N

.
e
’

We have nothing to report in respect of the follownng matters |n relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requrres us to report to you if, in our oplnron

. adequate accountrng ‘records have not been - kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recelved from branches not vrsrted by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement wrth the accounting records and returns; or:
. certaln disclosures of Trustees remuneration specrt” ied by law are not made or

i
. we have not recerved aII the information and explanations we requwe for our audit.

’ . . § .

i



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF GROVE
WOOD ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of Trustees

v

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) «are. responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for belng satisfied that they give-a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable-the preparation of f nancial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. - .

.

In-preparing the flnanC|aI statements, the Trustees are responS|bIe for assessmg the Academy Trust's ability to S
‘continue .as a going concern, disclosmg, as appllcable matters related to going-concern and using the going {

- concern basis of accountlng unless the Trustees elther intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease ' .
operatlons ‘or have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

r.‘._ , - ] .

. Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements : R o

’
N Lx

. Our objectives are;to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

" from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our -
, . Opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is.not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
* accordance W|th ISAs (UK),will always detect a material misstatement when it éxists. Misstatements can arise
from' fraud or error and are considered material.if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

-' expected to influence the -economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements .

W ‘ - 7
A further descrlptlon of our respon5|b|I|t|es for the audlt of the flnanC|al statements is located on the Financial
Reporting -Council's website at: www.frc.org. uk/audltorsresgons:blhtre ‘This - description forms part of our

Audltors Report ' X

« . . .

. '
A s ‘ .

.

l

; Use of our report

.

&

. *

¢ This report is made solely to the Academy Trusts members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 C
’ of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's ' T
- members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest ‘extent permltted by law, we do. not accept or assume responS|b|||ty to anyone other than the ‘Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed ' .

Ps

Cara Miller ACCA (Senlor Statutory Audltor) - . :
for and on béhalf of )
"MHA Macintyre Hudson
Chartered Accountants .
©* ' Statutory Audltors= ' . ) : . .

Boundary House ' . .

+ 4 County Place, : . - .
Chelmsford . . )
Essex _ .
CM2 ORE ; ' ' o,

bate:/& Dequmune/ 2009 o L :
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: INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GROVE

»~

WOOD ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

P

E
.

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 7 November 2017 and further to the requirements -
of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to

_2019 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited’ assurance about whether the expendlture disbursed

and income received by Grove Wood Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 Aligust 2019 have

_been applied to the purposes |dent|f|ed by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities

which govern them. . ) . ‘ -

This.report is made solely to Grove Wood Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance wuth the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we ‘might state to Grove Wood Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state ina report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responS|b|I|ty to anyone other than Grove Wood Academy Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for thls report, or for the conclusron we have formed. . -

-

* Pl £

-reportlng accountant ' r

The. accountmg offlcer is_responsible, under, the’ requrrements of .Grove Wood Academy Trust's fundlng
tagreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 July 2014 and the Academles Fmanmal Handbook,
extant "from 1 September 2018, for ensunng that expenditure dlsbursed and income received is applred for the.
purposes intended by Parliament and the fi nancial transactlons conform to the authontnes which govern them.

.Our responsrbllltles for this engagement are establlshed in the United Klngdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain’ limited assurance ‘and report in“accordance with our engagement letter and the

. requirements of the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come

fo.our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and

‘:income received during the year 1° ‘September 2018 to 31-‘August 2019 have not been applied to purposes

rntended by Parliament or that the fmancral transactions do not conform to the autnorltles which govern them.

o4
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GROVE
WOOD ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) .

.

. .
¥

Approach . : ’ .
‘We conducted our .engagement in accordance with:the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by
ESFA We performed a limited assurance engagement as deflned in our engagement letter. L

5

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to" ‘perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us wuth sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negatwe conclusion on
regularity. . . . .

. : , ’.‘ .
A limited assurance engagement is more . limitéd in scope than a reasonable -assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that

R mlght be ldentlfled ina reasonable assurance engagement Accordmgly, we do not express a posmve opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on atest basis, of ewdence relevant to the regularlty and proprlety of the
Academy Trust’s income and expendlture . Eh :

.

.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusuons include: -~ .
o Rewewmg the Minutes of the Governing Body and other evndence made avallable to us, relevant to our- -
con5|derat|on of regularity; . S
.. - Areview of the objectives and activities of the Academy Trust W|th reference to the income streams: and
other mformatlon available to us-as auditors; .
. Testing a sample of payroll payments to staff; -
. Testing a sample of payments to suppliers and other third partles ' .
..~ " Testing a sample of grants received and-other income streams; ) . . '
e Consideration of governance issues; and - " + 3 ' ‘
‘e Evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, and testlng as approprlate and maklng

approprlate enqumes of the Accountlng Offi cer e e '

Co'ncluslon - T .o e

In the course of our work nothnng has come ‘to_ our attentlon which suggest in aII material_respects the
3 expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not been
., .applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the f nangcial transactlons do not conform to the authormes whlch

govern them. - .

-
L) .
B

o

M mawu:gre Mwwﬂfi ' S -
Reportmg Accountant

- MHA Macintyre Hudson . .
Boundary House : .

4 County Place ,
Chelmsford ‘

.Essex’ . -
CM2 ORE .

Date: 28 DZCQJ’VU&Q/ZC/?C{ ) i ,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Note

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants a4t

Charltable activities
Other trading activities
Investme':nts

PO T
Total income
-Eipenditure on:

* . Raising funds ¢

) Chantable act|V|t|es . 8

Total expenditure . 7
Net v
. income/(expenditur
.e). i :

Transfers between *
funds, : " 16
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gainsl(losses)
Other recognlsed
gams/(losses)

Actuarial losses on
, defined beneflt

pens:on schemes. 21

Net move_ment in -
funds

(=220 4, IR -V}

Restricted

2.

Unreétricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds, general funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
£ £ £ £ £
40,235 .. ; 34,397 74,632 26,385
50,741 2,557,632 "+ . 2,608,373 2,502,534
248,239 - . 248,239 170,124
© 445 . - 445 L 419
339,660 2,557,632 34,397 ' 2,931,689 | :2,699,462
14,788 - - 14,788 14,458
149,489, 2,744,632 187,657 3,081,778 2,948,399.
164,277 ' 2,744,632 187,657, 3,006,566 2,962,857
- 175,383 (187,000) (153,260) (164,877): ' (263,395)
- "1 . -
* (78,336) . 78,336 - -
97,047 (187,000 - (74,924).  (164,877) (263,395)
. " (270,000) . (270,000) 325,000
97,047 (457,000) (74,924) (434,877) 61,605
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STATEMENT. OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 '

Restricted
Unrestricted ., Restricted fixed asset Total . Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 » 2019 2018
Note £ ‘£ < £ £ £
Reconciliation of o ‘ ‘ '
funds: .
Tt e s o
Total funds brought _ . a R .
forward- . © 16 589,104 (1 556 ,000) - 6,996,822 6,029,926 .5,968,321
Net movement ini funds - - 97,047 (457 000) (74,924) (434,877) 61,605
Total funds carried v — — — . - =
forward - o 686,151 + (2,013,000) §,9?1,898 . 5,59~5,049 6,029,926,
The Statefnen_t of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in t‘he year. .
The notes on pages 35 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
. ) : "
& . ‘ s . i r.. *
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" BALANCE SHEET
. ‘ AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

2019
Note £

Fixed assets _

Tangible assets * ‘ 13 6,921,898

6,921,898

Current assets : . ' T "

' Débtors ' i 14 - 42,440 ‘
Caeh qt bank and in_ hand .2 S 20 o 829,070

4 B R\ |
’ . Credltors amounts falllng due wnthln one . o
ol _ year . . _ . 16 (185,359)

v

.. e © 871,510

e "'-Netcurrentassets . v " ., 686,151

'P .

.Total assets Iess current |Iabl||tles S 7,608,049

Net assets excludmg pensmn Ilablllty ' * ' 7,608,049
¢ c Def' ned benefit pension scheme I|ab|||ty o 21 (2,61 3,'090)

- Total net assets * 1 , . . 5,595,049
f"" . ——

v

Funds of the Academy Trust

‘ Restrlcted funds. N . _
l T Restncted flxed asset funds . . - 16 6,921,898 ., . -
' . _—

Restncted funds excludlng penS|on liability 16 _5,9'21,898 :

Restncted general funds - Pension reserve .16 (2,013,000) .

’

 Total restricted funds 16 4,908,898
Unrestncted funds c 16 686,151

28

PES i

Total funds _ . 5,595,049

. . d1
eree cetssssaraeissesrisaanannn .

. G Blakesley ‘
- Chair of Trustees : :
Date: ‘1 112/20:4

. 'Tbe“'notes on pages 35 to 63 form pért of th'es’e’ financial statements.

4

59,948

721,591

. 781,539

(192:435)

*

6,996,822'»

6,996,822
~ (1,556,000)

2018

6,996,822
6,996,822

"

3

?

589,104

. 7,585,926

7,585,926
.. (1,556,000) -
. 6,029,926

5,440,822
, 589,104

6,029,926

« o The financial statements on pages)3.1 to 63 were approve& by the Trustees, and are signed on their behalf, by: -

PR U . S .



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

4

1]

Cash flows from operating activities

-

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from inveéting activities

-

Change in cash émd casti equivaierits in the yéar i

Cash and cash équivalents at the beginnin’Q of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeéf'

*
N +

The notes on pages 35 to

-

.o

63 form part of these financial staterﬁéﬁis
( _ 1anci !

[y

3

-

+

v

Note

18

19

w
R

2019 2018

£ £
150,973 73,062
(43,494)  (51,005)
107,479 ' 21,967
721,591 . 699,624 -

.20

829,070' = 721,591

’



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

Accounting policies

1. 1 Basrs of preparation of fmancral statements

[ ' v
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), |udgments and key sources of estimation uncertalnty, is set out below.

i + \

» . v

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102,.have

been prepared under the - historic . cost convention in:accordance with the . Financial ‘Reportlng-

Standard ‘Applicable in the UK and-Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and. Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to, charmes preparing their accounts in
,accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS

102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2018 to 2019 rssued by ESFA :

the Chantles Act 2011 and the Compames Act 2006. ° -

’ . . A Y- i

Grove Wood Academy Trust: meets the deflmtlon of a,public benefit entity | under FRS 102 The

, financial statements are prepared in pounds WhICh is the functional currency of the Academy Trust

‘A

and rounded to the nearest pound :

1:2 Going concern ' ) ' . <

. . ‘ t v

" The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern’is appropriate; i.e. whether there are any

materlal uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast signifi cant doubt on ‘the ability of
the Academy Trust to contlnue as a going concern..The Trustees make this assessment in.respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authonsatnon for issue of the financial.statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and.there are’no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue.as a going concern -thus 'they continue to adopt the gomg concern basns of accounttng in
preparlng the financial statements : ¢ . .

hd «
. " ’ , .
. .
'

-\
-

&£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

14

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entltlement to- the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably. - .

.Grants ' N : '

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposesrbut not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of- ‘meeting any performance-
related condltlons there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related condltlons are met Where
entltlement occurs before mcome is recelved the income is accrued. .
General Annual Grant is recognlsed in fulI in the Statement of Financial Actlvmes |n the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year.is deducted from income and recognlsed as

a llablllty : . . . ’ .

1
N

Capital grants‘are’ recognised in full when there’is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised .when there |s entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on-
which they are expended. ’

B L . .

0 -

Donatlons . ‘ .

" Donations are recognised on a receivable baSIS (where there are no performance-related condltlons)

where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
’ . +

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facnlltles is recognised'in the perlod in which it is receivable and to
the extent the goods have been provided or on completionof the service.

Expenditure '

r

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructlve obllgatlon to transfer economic benef t
to a third party, it is probable that-a transfer of economic benefits will be required-in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be: measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs- -and shared costs, including support costs

- involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single act|V|ty are allocated dlrectly

to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and deprecuatnon
charges alIocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on ralsmg funds

This includes.all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and mcludes costs of all fundraising act|V|t|es events and non- charltable trading. .-

B . 3
' -

Charltable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relatmg to the governance of the Academy Trust apportloned to chantable activities.-

{. '

' - .+ Page36 . , L .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED.31 AUGUST 2019 -

1.

"

+

2

~.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4. Expenditure (continued) )

e
.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

15 :' Interest receivable ‘

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normaily upon notlf‘ cation of the mterest paid or payable by the
' lnstltutlon with whom the funds are depOS|ted

4 . » »

1.6 Taxation"- . . : | o e o

17 Tanglble f|xed assets and deprecratlom ]

*

The Academy Trustis consrdered to pass the tests set out m.Paragraph 1 Schedule 6of the Finance
+Act 2010 and’ therefore it meets the defi nltron of a chantable .company for UK. corporatlon tax

purposes . . ; .. , ;

e - .
S B

Accordmgly, the Academy Trust is potentlally exempt’ from taxation in respect of income or capltal
gains. received within categories’covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax-Act 2010 or
Sectlon 256 of the, Taxatlon of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such‘income or galns
are apphed exclusnvely to chantable purposes. ; - ‘ .

3 x
+ . '

Assets costung £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible flxed assets and are carned at cost, net of

deprecuatron and any provnsmn for |mpa|rment 4

'y

. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the ald of specnflc grants, either from the ;

government or from the private, sector, they are included in the Balance. Sheet at. cost and
depreciated over théir expected useful economnc life. Where there are specific conditions’ attached to
_the funding requiring the ‘continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restrlcted
“fixed asset fund in the Statement of :Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
-Depreciation on the relevant assets .is charged  directly to the restricted fi xed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tanglble fixed assets have been acqurred with unrestricted
funds: a transfer is made to place these assets into the Restricted fixed: asset fund. : -

Deprematlon is provided on all tanglble fixed assets other than freehold Iand and assets -under
_ construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of’ each asset on a'straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows: . .

. * N . AN

The estimated useful lives are as follows: _ N ' !

.
("

Freehold property 50 years straight line

Fixtures and fittings - 10 years straight line

Plant and machinery - 5 vyears straight line ,

Computer equipment . - 3 years straight line ™ o -
-Mdtor vehicles P . - 5 years stralght Ilne . '

A review for rmpalrment of a fixed asset is carned out if events or changes in circumstances md:cate
that the'carrying value of any fixed asset-may not be‘recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts' are recognised as |mpa|rments Impairment

losses are recognlsed |n the Statement of Fmancral Activities. * . .,

Page 37 _ '
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«NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 e

[

Accounting policies (continued)

19 Cash at bank and in hand . . *,,

1.10 Llabllltles - .

1.1 Provnswns : 3 .. ‘ . A ‘ ‘

.

N B
-

1.8 Debtors - -

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settiement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. :

. .. N -
.

Cash at bank and.in hand includes’ cash and short-term hlghly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from thedate of acqunsmon or opening of the deposnt or similar account.

" + y
i . . . " ' .o
- ¢ )
¥ 7 s . .

.o .

Llabllltles are recognlsed when there is"an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the ‘amount

sof.the settlement can; be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recogmsed at the amotint that the Academy -
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced payments for
the goods or. services it must provide. - = - - -

- ‘ ' . «

.
A

-
- % -

- ’ Iy !F
Provusmns are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obhgation atthe reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic, beneflts and the obligatlon
can be estimated reliably ' ' ‘
Provisions are measured at the best estlmate of the amounts requnred to settle the obligation: Where -
the effect of the time value of money is materlal the prowsmn is based on the present value of those
amounts, discountéd at'the ‘pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges. :
’ . ok ’ - ’ -

Y . . -

4 $
s

11'2Financialtinstruments v , o _ :

v
PR 3 » ~ :

. The Academy Trust oniy holds basic fnanmal mstruments as defined |n FRS 102 The financial
assets and financial Iiabllltles of the Academy Trust and their. measurement bases are as follows: *
Financia/ assets --trade and’other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt. instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. ‘Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash
at bank is classified as'a basic fmancral instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instru’ment and is measured at face value.
] il
Financial l/ab;htles - trade creditors, accruals' and other credltors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social secunty are not included in
" the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred .income is not deemed 'to be a f nanC|aI
liability, as the cash settliement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services

rather than cash or another financial instrument. .

. . §

[ 393

+



‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS : ,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.1§ Pensions

!

P 1.14Fund'accounting Lt | oo

.

. A

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by.the Teachers' Pension

Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are def ned benefit

schemes . . Y :
‘The TPS.is an unfunded* scheme and contnbutrons are calculated so as to spread* the cost of
pensions over employees working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantlally level percentage of current and future pensronable payroll. The contributions are
* determined by the Government Actuary on the .basis of quadrennlal valuations usmg a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi- employer scheme with no underlying ‘assets to assign
' between employers Consequently, sthe' TPS is treated as a defined ‘contribution scheme for
accountlng purposes and the contrlbutlons recognlsed in the period to which they relate. s
The LGPS is a funded multl employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those. of the
.Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured. at fair
value and liabilities.are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The’amounts charged to operating surplus are the

.current service costs and ‘the costs .of scheme mtroductrons benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as . part of ‘staff costs as incurred. Net interest onthe. net defined
benef t liability/asset is also ‘recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
" interest _cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multlplylng the fair value of the scheme assets at the ‘beginning ‘of the penod by the rate used to
discount the benefit obllgatlons The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognlsed in other recognised gains and. Iosses

i . P

Actuarlal galns and losses are recognrsed lmmedrately in other recognlsed galns and losses.

\
»

Al .
8 '_ : X . PR -

Unrestrlcted income funds represent those resources which may be _used towards meetrng any of the
chantable objects of the Academy Trust at the drscretlon of the Trustees

L) % ,
Restrrcted flxed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital: purposes
|mposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held fora specrf ic purpose.
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received: with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for’ Educatlon Group. .

Investment income, gains and Iosses are allocated to the appropnate fund.

b

o . Paage¢1§.9' Lt



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2. Critical accounting estimates and ereée ofjudgment'
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectatlons of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under 'the
circumstances. ‘ .

'

. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions: ‘
3
..The Academy Trust makes estimates.and assumptlons concernlng the future. The resultlng accounting
"estimates and assumptlons will, by definition; seldom equal the related actual results. The' estimates and
assumptions that have -a significant risk of‘causing a material “adjustment to the carrylng amounts “of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

* N

<

. .

The present value ‘of the Local Government Pensuon Scheme defined benef t Ilablllty depends on a
number of factors that are determined on4an actuarial ‘basis using.a variety of assumptions., The
. assumptions used in. determlnlng the net cost “or income for pensions include-the discount rate. Any
changes in;these assumptions, which-are’ ‘disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension.liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarlal
" _valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been. used by the actuary in valumg the pensions llablllty at 31
August 2019. Any differences ‘bétween - the fgures derived from the roll forward -approach and a full
.actuarial valuation would lmpact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. *

Critical areas of judgment '

p .
The Judgments that have had a significant effect on the amounts in the financial Statements are those
concerning the chonce of depre0|at|on and asset Ilves . -

]
4

.

. . .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT.E'MEN:TS

*FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

y

‘4

3 Income from donatiohs\and capital grants “
: . " Restricted )
Unrestricted fixed asset ‘Total
“ funds funds . funds
: ' -2019 . 2019 2019
1, - £ £ -
g A ". Donations ' 40,235 ° - 40,235
. : . Capital grants Lo - 34,397 34,397
. . » 1 . » - Y|
U Total 2019 ' - 40235' 34,397 74,632
. 5 s Y i . . « v
'. " : L S . Restricted
" . . Unrestricted - fixed asset Total
g o . funds’ | funds funds
A ' : 2018 2018 2018
, o £ £ £
Donations ) 15,275 . - 15,275
re b Capital grants P - £11,110° 11,110
T . %Y Total2o18 . 15275 11,110 26,385.
¢ - " i ’ N ‘ .
1]
. ;o 4 ' Y [ .
o " -
. . i s
¥, '
. -0
h ‘ 2 ) L ' ,
.o 5 S . Page 41 o .
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THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

NOTES TO

*

5 i

4. Charitable activities - Funding for the Academy Trust's educational op

Unrestricted

funds

_ 2019

‘ N £
DfE/ESFA grants )

General'Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium !

. Other DfE / ESFA revenue grants -

-

-

-

erations

Restricted

general . - Total
funds funds
2019 2019

£ £

1 2,084,718 - 2,084,718
' 85107 - 85,107

© 144770. % 144,770

S - ’ -V 2,314,595 2,314,595
* Other government grants : : e T : )
Local Authority revenue grants’ ) - 160,406  -160,406

e . £ . . e
, N 160,406 160,406

. Other funding ' : S
,  Other Eduicational income 50,741 . 82,631 133,372
Total 2019 . 50,741 2,557,632, 2,608,373

There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the government grants above.

4 N

]
b .

Restricted ,

* Unrestricted general Total
~ funds funds ,,.funds
) 2018 2018 - 2018 .
. £ i £ " £
DfE/ESFA grants _ T .
General Annual Grant (GAG) ‘ - 2,000,538 2,000,538
Pupil Premium - 84,933 84,933
Other DfE / ESFA revenue grants \ - . . 120,490 120,490
. ) . ' - 2,205,961 2,205,961
Other government grants ) T ,
Local Authority revenue grants i - 156,954 . 156,954
- 156,954 - 156,954,
Other funding _ . - ' .o
Other Educational income ‘ *58,973 . 80,646 - 139,619
Total 2018 . 58973 2443561 2,502,534,
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* *NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

:

5. Income from other trading" activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds ~ funds
2019 ‘2019 .7 2018
£ £ £
Rental income _ 25,077 '25,077 122311
Other self generated income | 223,162 . 223,162 147,813
Total 2019 a 248,239 248,239 170,124
; . - B . ' ‘ . . .- R ’ . - - .
In 2018, all Income from other trading activities was allocated to unréstricted funds. 2
’ . . -f ‘ . < ‘ Fi ¥
"6. . Investment income ! ’
| ? ' X ’»
’ ) ‘ o Unrestricted .. Total Total,
' - . funds funds funds
.' ) N ' - 2019 -2019 2018
y £ 3 £
. Bank interest receivable . . ‘445 445’ 419
' t

In 2018, all Income from investments was allocated to unrestricted funds.

+




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS;

:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

. 7. - Total expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds:

Direct costs
Educational operations:
Direct costs |

. VR 8
Allocated support costs

Total 2019

.

Educational operations:
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

+*

Total 2018

.

. -Staff costs
2019
£

* -

N

1,799,121
652,486

Premises

costs *Other costs Total
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
L 14,788 14,788
- 337,831 2,136,952
240,867 51,473 ° 944,826 .

2,451 607

240867 404,092 3,096,566

o
X

Staff costs
.2018
£

: 11,741,141
: 624,427

i .
i 0

« A
Premises . ,' _
" costs Other costs Total
2018 ¢ 2018 2018
£ £ £
- 311,938 . 2,053,079 -
221,447 49,446 8%5,320

' 2,365,568

’ *

' In 2018; of the total‘expenditﬁre;of'£2,9621857, £180,841 v;/as
' from restricted general funds and £151,455 was from restricted fixed asset funds.

r

- 221,447 . © 361,384 2,948,399

1

- Bl
.

from unrestricted funds, £2,630,561 was




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019" .
8. Analysis of expenditure by charitable activities ° . ‘ : .
' ‘ - Activities -
undertaken -~ Support ~ Total
. - directly _costs . funds
2019 2019 2019
‘ £ £ £
Educational operations- , o - 2,136,952 ., 944,826 3,081,778
S , o o 7 Activiies . ¢ :
" C i 5 IR _undertaken ', Support - Total
. _ v o ‘ o - directly . costs’ funds °
o RN - . < T -, 2018 2018 ° 2018
: o e ‘ . S - £ R
e ' - hl . . ' , : & ; .
.,Educational Sperations . 2,053,079 -895,320 2,948,399
v . 5 PR ' % S [ . ’
. R oot . “ R
i .» .. Analysis of support costs e . ’
o . ;|' - L . o ‘ .o ) | o —" F , ) ) -
e o ‘ ' . Educational _ Total - Total
o . ‘. ‘ : _ operations , - funds - funds
PRI ; _ L ©2019° 2019 2018
o . ; : . £
- ; Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost * -, 40,0'60" 3 40,000 4}3,000-\
v © <Staffcosts , e T 612,486 . * 612,486 581,427,
B - Depreciation , . 153260 153,260 151,455
" Premises costs , o 116,656+ . 116,656 . 95706 ¢
Other costs ’ : ro . 8,137 8,137 . .. 8,634
* * Governance costs e 14,287 - 14,287 15,098 *
' Total 2019 - . 044,826 944,826 895320
Ly . K
r . . s * * ! ’
. - ¥
" " ‘ '!' B - .
- | - .
* N N . 1 . . ' K
- b . Page 45 " :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

9.

Net incofnel(expenditure)

—

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation of, tangible ﬁx‘ed assets
Fees paid to audito?s for: |

- Audit of the f nanmal statements

- Other service

%

No central serwces were prov:ded by the Trust in the year and no central charges arose as Grove Wood
remains the only academy in the Multi Academy Trust at 31 August 2019

IS

 Staff costs

e .

a. S“taff'co‘sts ‘

+

Staff costs during the year \_N’ere:as follows:

.
-

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
* Pension costs -

h B

N

.

»

Agency staff costs .
* Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost -

.

-

.«

»

~

i

2019
£
. 153,260
. 7,800 °
o 4,700

: . . ¥

i

(SN . 1

\

2018
£

151,455

7.650

7,448

¢ -

; 2019 2018
T .

) 1,831,188 1,762,330
. * ' 111,677 118,844
.~ - .458,334 -, 438,726
' 12,401,199 2,319,900
T 10,408 . 2,668
‘ - 40,000 43,000
« 2,451,607 2,365,568

*
%

&
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 . . : :

. - - 10. Staff costs (continued)
b. Staff numbers ‘

The average number of pérsons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

' : 4

. ‘ © " 2019 2018
" . ‘ * No. . No.
*  Teachers ST ' ‘4 28 1 26
Management _ - A L5 5 1
K ‘Kdminirs'tr_a'tion and support - : : _ - 90 94

- —_— 123, © ¢ 125

Y

- ' c.Higher paid staff .| . - , o . o E
‘ ' The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludlng employer pensnon costs) exceeded ;
g £60,000 was: .
s : y . 1
‘ ) _ ) ’ 2019 2018
. T . ) ' . No. < No.
L ~“Inthe band £70,001 - £80,000 ‘ R -- B

LR In the band £80,001 - £90,000 ’ ) . 1. _

X " > . N
¥ * 4

The above. employees participated |n the Teachers' Pensuon Scheme During the year ended 31 August
2019 pension contributions for these staff amounted to £12, 357 (2018 - £12,180)
Yo ¢ d. Key management personnel , .
_ » The Key® Management Personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the - Senior
‘ Management Team as listed on page 1. The -total amount of employee benefits (including employer
) national ‘insurance contributions and employer pension contnbutlons) received by Key Management
Personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £352, 795 (2018 £339,225).

¢




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - ° : ‘ .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

] -

1.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses .

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment

- with the Academy.Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of

services théy provnde undertaking the roles 'of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees remuneratlon and other beneflts was as follows:

Ny <

.
-

Durmg the period ended 31 August 2019, expenses totalllng £338 (2018 £338) were reimbursed to 1
Trustee (2018 1).. ..

) £ . s . . - ’ v .
Trustees’ and Officers’ insurance A
[Y ’ . H
In accordance with normal commercial practlce the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from_ negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and.the cost for the
year ended 31 August 2019 is mcluded in the total lnsurance cost o . L.

d .

o . Page 48 ’ T

I

.

) : : 2019 -~ 2018
c o . : £ . £
R Green, Head Teacher . - * Remuneration 80,000 - 70,000 - .
’ ’ : . : 85,000 . 75,000
' Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 10,000 -
C, - 15,0000 15,000
. F Hooper , Remuneration * . 35,000 - 30,000 -
S ’ PRI . ' 40,000 35,000
e ’ Pension contributions paid 5,000 - 5,000 -
o . o - 10,000 10,000
S Mark (resigned 17 May 2018) Remuneration . - 10,000 - *
o ‘ ' . T v 15,000
© ) " Pension contributions paid - , - 0-5,000 . "
J Douglas (resigned 3 March 2019) . Remuneration . ‘ N -
. . Pension contributions paid : -
N Pitt (appointed 1'Apri| 2019) Remuneration ¢ 0 - 5,000 -
- : +¥.  Pension contributions paid 0-5,000 -
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENfS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST. 2019

13.

14.

Tangible fixed assets

Fréehold _ Fixtures Plant and - Computer Motor :
property and fittings machinery equipment vehicles Total
- £ ‘ £ £ £ g
Cost or valuation _ o : : : :
At 1 September 2018 . 7,400,857 88,709 ° 20,795 . 55,932 6,654 ‘ 7,572,947
Additions . 53,839 . - - .24,497 - 78, 336,
" At31August2019 . 7,454,696 88,709 20,795 . 80,429 6,654 . 7,651,283
R ) . ' : R . S. = . . Tr ..
Depreciation “ - S oot c T
At 1 September 2018- 497,148 21,980 16,289 39,044 1,664 576,125
‘Charge for the year ,’ 124,211, 8,913 4,159 . 14,646 ©1,331 153,260
At31August2019. . 621,359 = 30,893 - 20,448 53690, , 2995 729,385,
"Net book value K - .
At 31 August 2019 6,833,337 57,816 347 26,739 ' 3,659 6,921,898
At31,]August2018 ' 6,903,709 66,729 °  4506.  16,888° " 4,990 6,996,822
K . ) ————_— _— = : s 2,
. Included in freehold property is Iand at valuatron of £1, 220, 000 (2018 '£1,220 000) whrch is not
deprecrated ’ . . T e .

The Freehold property. was. valued-at conversion to academy status on 21 July 2015 by Mouchel a RICS
Registered Valuer using.the depreciated replacement cost method. The Trustees consrder—that the .

valuation remains appropriate ‘for the purposes of these financial statements. -

’

o 3
* Debtors

2019 - 2018
£ £

. *Due within one year _ ,

‘ Trade debtors ’ : ' ' 1,579 1,938
_Other debtors o e r 5,592 12,063
Prepayments and accrued income cTo .o 35,269 45,947

N B * - ' .
’ ~ - R . 42,440 59,948 *
. ! .
* I R A ;




'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS!
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

15.

C.r‘edit‘ors: Amounts falling due within ohe year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social securlty

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

4

)

.
s
B B

Deferred income at'1 Septerﬁber
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from prewous perlods

Deferred income at 31 August

.

At the Balance Sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds recelved in. advance for- the 2019/20
. Academic year in respect of funding paid in advance for a teacher seconded to another institution as well

as UIFSM and trlps advance payments.

¥

"ty 2019 2018
T £ £
13,033 17,700

31,965 31,065

- . 38,194 35,945
102,167 107,725

" 185,359 192,435

? 2019 . 2018

Sy . . £ £
o 77,300 ° 77,751
B * 89,667 77,300

. ~ . (77,300) (77,751)
' * '89,667 77,300

1
x

Y

ar
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NOTE_S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

"

Statement of funds

Unrestricted
funds

De's.i‘gnate'd }
funds
Capital
_improvements
-'(Boiler)
Capital ~
improvements
- (Toilets):
Capital '
* improvements
-'(LED
Lighting)

General funds
Unrestricted -
general funds .

'Total 4
Unrestricted
- funds .

Restricted:
general funds

Géheral Annual
Grant (GAG) *
Pupil Premiur_n

Other DfE /

- ESFA revenue
grants -

Local Authority
revenue grants

Other -, .
Educational !
income '’

Pension reserve

Balance,a‘t 1

Balar)ce at
September Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £
165,000 - . . 165,000
. 10,000 - (10,000) - 10,000
© 27,000 - . - - 15,000
202,000 - (10,000) - 190,000 .
387,104 330,660  (154,277) - 496,151
589,104 - 339,660 (164,277) - ' 686,151
. 2,084,718  (2,084,718) - -
- 85,107. (85,107) - -
. 144770 (144,770) . ;
- 160,406 (160,406) ; .
- T 82,631 (82,631) | - -
(1,556,000) - (187,000) - (270,000) . '(2,013,000)

~

(1,556,000) 2,557,632

‘(2,744,632): -

(270,000)  (2,013,000)

%

4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

—
16.  Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at1 - o '  Balance at
September . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) ,2019
£ £ £ £ ) £ R
" Restricted fixed .
asset funds " ) -
.NBVoffixed . . . - o c
o assets | 6,996,822 - . - . (153,260) 78,336. - - - 6,921,898
" DfE/ESFA _ ' T S _— :
capital grants ™ - 34,397  (34,397) - - :
6,996,822 34397  (187,657) 7833 . - . 6,921,898 '
Total Restricted ’ e .o v e, ._ - - C
funds 5,440,822 2,592,029 : (2,932,289) 78;336“ (270,000)” 4,908,898
Total funds 6,029,926  '2,931,689  (3,096,566) _ v (270,000) 5,595,049

The specific pufposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows

The Unrestrlcted ‘General fund has been created to.recognise the income and.expenditure in respect of
activities -undertaken by the Academy Trust which fall outside the scope of its ‘core activities. During the
year, £10,000 was transferred out of unrestricted funds and into designated funds to top-this funds up

- following expenditure in the year. A further £76,336 was transferred out of unrestricted funds and into the -

NBV of f xed assets funds for capital addltlons made out of unrestricted funds s
The Unrestrlcted Desrgnated fund was created in the prevrous year in respect of fundrng future capital
expenditure. At the year end the Academy Trust has .designated .a total of £190,000 for new ‘capital
projects over the followrng financial yearfDurlng the year, £10,000 of non:capitalisable: expendrture was

' recognrsed in the Capital improvements - (Toilets).fund. Following this, a transfer of £10,000,was made
fromlunrestricted funds to top the fund back up Durrng the year, £12,000 of capitalisable expenditure was
transferred out- of theé, Capital improvements - (LED ,Lighting)- fund to'the NBV of fixed assets fund.
Followmg this, a transfer of £15,000 was made from unrestricted funds to top the fund back up.

+

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educatronal activities of the
Academy Trust via the Education and Skills Funding Agency”(ESFA) by the Department for Education
(DfE). The GAG fund has been established because the GAG must be used for the normal running costs
of the Academy Trust.*

) .

o . T ‘,;;Page§2;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 - :

.

Statement of funds (contmued)

The Pupil Premium fund has been established to recognise the restricted funding from the Education and
Skills Funding Agency to raise the attamment of disadvantaged puprls and close the gap between them
and their peers. e’

The Other DfE/ESFA Grants fund has been created to recogmse the restricted fundmg received from the
DfE/ESFA which fall outside thé scope of.core fundlng

The Pensmn resérve has been created to separately identify the pension deficit mhented from- the Local
Authonty upon conversmn to Academy status, and through which all the pension scheme movements are
recognlsed S , o *

‘ . 4 : ) ' ’ e

The NBV of fixed assets fund has been set up to’ recognise the tangible assets held by the Academy Trust
and is equivalent to-the net book value of tangible fixéd assets. - Depreciation of tangible’ fixed assets is

allocated to this fund. During the year, £27,000 was transferred in from designated funds and £51: 336 was '

transferred in from unrestrlcted funds whlch represent capltal addltrons made usrng these funds.
“ * 4

S~

. The DfE/ESFA Capltal Grants fund has been created to recogmse capltal grants received for the purpose

of the acqursmon of tangible fixed assets As tangrble fixed assets are purchased, a transfer is made to
the NBV of fixed asset funds. - . : . -

[
.

Grove Wood remains the only,academy in the Multl Academy Trust at 31 August 2019 and all-the: funds
above are those of Grove Wood. v ) .

. A
. : M

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.

v
.

-
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16.

.
s

Statement of funds (conti,nued)"

Balance at
1 September
2017
- £
Unrestricted
funds

.

v

»

. £ '

» -

Designated -
“funds .

"Capital ) .

_improvements
* - (Boiler)
Capital.

improvements”™

- (Toilets) -
Capital

improvements
- (LED .
Lighting) -

174,252

v

-

£

“Income  Expenditure

. Comparative information in respect' of the preceding year.is as follows:

r

¢

Transfers
in/out
£

Gains/
(Losses)
£

Balance at

« 31 August
2018

£

165,000 .
10,000

3
27,000

174,252

" .. 202,000

. .

General funds : .

Unre'strictled. T
funds © 402,416

244,791

(180,841)

(79,262)

387,104

" Total “ L

‘Unres'tricted - .
funds B ‘576,668

244791  (180,841)"

(51,514)

¢ .
v .

t

Restricted
general funds

General Annual

Grant (GAG) e -
Pupil Premium -
Other DfE /

ESFA revenue

grants -
Local ‘Authority

revenue grants -
Other- .
" «Educational . ,

income oy L -

g

2,000,538 . (2,000,538)
84933  .(84,933)

.
EY

120,490

156,954  (i56,954)

80,646 . -(80,646)

F ]

<

LR

(120,490)

n
¢
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16. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at ' : Balance at
1 September * . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
. 2017 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2018
' A £ 3 _ £ £
Pension reserve (1,694,060) ‘- (187,000) ) - 325,000 (1,556,000)
‘ (1,694,000) 2,443,561  (2,630,561) . . - 325,000 (1,556,000)
" Restricted fixed - 3 .
. asset funds o, . ! .
NBV of fixed = .~  °~ . o i L
asséts 7,085,653 - (151,455), - 62,624 - ;6,996,82;2 .
DfE / ESFA ; R . R ,
capital grants L. 11,110 - - . (11,110) - .= v
. : ’ L . . ' * . . . -
' \ 12,685,653 11,110 (151,455) 51,514 . - §,996,822 [
‘Total Restriéted ‘ . o : T
funds - ° 5,391,653 2,454,671  (2,782,016) -51,514 325,000 5,440,822

| Totalfunds' . - 5968321 2699462 (2,962,857) & 325000 6,029,926
N +
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

17.

A'nalysis of net as;seté between fﬁnds

"Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets .
Current assets | ‘ _
Creditors due within‘one year .’
_ Defined benefit pension scheme liability

~ I .
i

+
“

¥ Total

\]

Analysis of net assets between funds - pl"i.oF year

. vt

1 »
» ‘

‘Tangible fixed assets:‘_ )
Curfentassets = = * ¢ ‘

' Cfeditoré due withih,‘,o;le year 4 ¢ _
Defiried benefit pension scheme liability

-

‘Total .

.

-4

-

Restricted  Restricted .

Unrestricted general fixed asset * Total
funds - funds funds funds

’ 2019 2019 2019 2019
£ £ . S 3

T - 6,92},898 6,921,898
. 871,510 .- FL - 871,510
(185359)  : .- '+ = -, (185359)
Sot e L1(2,013,000) . ~. " (2,013,000)

' . . v s

- - N -

686,151, (2,013,000) 6,921,898 5,595’,049‘

- x

¢ ”

Restricted - Restricted .

Unrestricted - general fixed asset _Total
funds - funds funds ' funds
2018 . . 2018 ,2018 ; 2018
+ £ R £
C - e’ .. .6996822. 6,996,822

589,104. 192,435 - . 781,539
- (192,435 - (192,435)
“ - (1,556,000) - <= (1,556,000)

589,104  (1,556,000) - 6,996,822 6,029,926

- +

-
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* NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'AUGUST 2019 -

18.

+19.

20.

-

A 4

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from‘operating activities
. '

i
L] » . -

2

%

2019 2018
S £
‘ Net expenditure for the year (_as per-Statemeﬁt of Financial Activities) 1 641877) (263,395)
. . ) b A
'Adj;‘ustments for: ] . ' e
Depreciation R * 153,260 ~151,455
Capltal grants from, DfE and other capital i income , * (34,397) -(11,110)
Investment income R e (445 = .(419) -
_ Defi ned behefit pensuon scheme cost léss’ contnbutlons payable a ‘147“,0_00 144,000
. Defi ned benef t pensnon scheme flnance cost ot ' : 49,000 43,000
Decrease/(lncrease) in debtors ! 17,508 (16,719)
(Decrease)/increase’in c_re@togs . . (7,076) 26,250
Net cash provided by operating activities -150,973. 73,062
« Cash flows from investing activities ’ Vo ' '
-+ .
. Lo 2019 2018
» ! ) . £ £
investment income . v : L .t .445 419
' Purchase of tangible fi xed assets o o . (78,336) . (62,624)
Capital grants from DfE Group s ’ S .34,397 11,110
Net cash used in invésfi'ng acfiyities - vt o (43,494) ' - (51,09‘5)‘
‘ Analysis of cash and cash' equivalents’ o ’
! 2019 2018
, ' £ £
+Cash in hand . o 829,070 ¢ 721,501
Total cash and cash equiVaIents s . 829,070 721,591

'

‘

3

1

s -

r



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31. AUGUST 2019

1

- 21,

Y

Pension commltments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension-schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme for England and Wales (TPS) for academlc and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex County Councﬂ Both are multl-
employer defined benefit schemes. . :

The Iatest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016

~
. .
K % 1

Contnbutlons amountlng t0'£38,194 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018 £35, 945)
and are mcluded within credltors .

- - . 3 s ] .
Teachers Pensnon Scheme : A ' - .

Introduction -* . ' ‘ oo o e

1

[

‘ - . " ) . ] k! : .. =N

§ - v

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scheme) is’a statutory, unfunded, ‘defined beneflt occupatronal
scheme,* governed by the Teachers Pensions Regulations® 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers
_Pension Scheme Regulatlons 2014 (as amended). ‘These regulations apply to teachers in schools and .
other educational establishments, lncludlng academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local’

* authorities. In addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-alded schools and teachers and-

Jlecturers in'some establishments of further and hlgher -education may be "éligible for membershlp .
Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and Iecturers and, from 1.January 2007, automatic too for _
teachers and lecturers in part-time employment followmg appomtment ora change of contract Teachers

~» and Iecturers are able to opt out of the TPS ) R C . .

The Teachers' Pensuon Budgetlng and Valuatlon Account _ ' i ‘ . *
Although members may be employed by various bodles their retirement-and’other pension beneflts are
'set out in regulatlons made 'under the Superannuation Act (1972) and Public Service Pensions Act (2013)
and are paid by publrc funds provided by Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members

. contribute on a 'pay as you go 'basis — contributions from members, along with those’ made by employers

are credited to the Exchequer-under arrangements governed by the above Acts. . s ‘o

I3 . L

The Teachers' Pensmns Regulatlons 2010 requlre an annual account the Teachers' Pension Budgetlng

. and Valuation Account, to-be kept of receipts-and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases).

-From 1 April 2001, the’ Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to
+assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional mvestments that produce that real rate of
return. .

"




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 y

»

21,

Scheme Changes

. Local Government Pension Scheme

Pension commitments (continued)

" Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

L

The latest valuation of the Teachers Pension Scheme has now taken place, in Irne wrth directions issued
by HM Treasury and using membershrp data as at 31 March 2016. - As a result of this valuation TPS
employers will pay an increased contrlbutron rate.of 23.68% from September:2019 (this includes the

. administration levy of 0. 8%). The trmrng of the implementation.is to align its introduction wrth employers’

budget planning cycles. Untrl then, employers will pay the current rate of 16.48%.

.
a

] 13

The arrangements fora reformed Teachers Pension Scheme m lin€ with the recommendations made by
Lord Hutton, in particular the introduction of ‘a Career Average Revalued Earnrngs (CARE) scheme, were

-rmplemented from 1 April 2015.

' . X
13 . . L

P L]

a

In December 2018, the ‘Court of Appeal held that transrtronal protection provrsrons contarned “in the

reformed judicial and firefi ighter pension schemes, introduced ‘as part of.public:service pensron reforms in

2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were -therefore unlawful. The Supreme’ Court, 'in-a- .

decision made in June 2019, have rejected.the. Government's application for permission to appeal the
Court of Appeal’s rulrng The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision regarding
the remedy which will need to be offered to those members of the two schemes who were subject of the

age. discrimination. ! . - S ] “ s

i

-

[ [
¥

scheme costs is expected to be looked at within the next scheme valuation, ‘which is currently scheduled
to be based on Aprrl 2020 data and |mplemented in April 2023 : v

The employers pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £166 907 (2018 - £157 266)
R [y
A copy of the valuation report and supportrng documentatron is on the Teachers Pensrons websrte

. Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 the TPS is an unfunded multi- employer pension scheme. The

Academy-Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as.if it were a defined contrrbutron
scheme. The Academy Trust has’ set out above the information available.on the scheme

1 r
v

R

- * .

_The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with "the assets held .in séparate trustee-’
admrnrstered funds. The total contrrbutron made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £185,000 (2018 -
' £176 000), of which employers contributions totalled £143,000 (2018 -*£136,000) and employees’

contributions totalled £ 42,000 (2018 - £40,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.5
per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees

o
Parlrament has agreed, 'at the request of the Secretary of State for Educatron to a guarantee that, in the

-

¥

'HM Treasury are cIear that the ruling:has. rmplrcatrons for the other public service schemes, including the:
Teachers’ Pension ‘Scheme. Those |mplrcatlons are currently being considéred and any impact on

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme' liabilities would be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

.

g
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' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019
21. Pension commitments (continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions
‘ 2019 2018
‘. . % %
: Rate of increase in salaries 3.70 3.80°
Rate of increasé for pensions in payment/inflation 2,20 2.30
Discount rate for scheme Ilabllltles 1.90 2.65. .
N 3. .
Inflation assumptlon (CPI) 2.20 2.30
Infla_tlon assumptlon (RP1)., 3.20 :}.30
. . “ : T
“wo » The current mortahty assumptlons mclude sufficient’ allowance for future improvements in mortahty rates.
o The assumed I|fe expectatlons on retlrement age 65 are
. ; R » 2019 . 2018
. ; ‘ N ) . Years Years
“ . . . .
' Ret/rlng toda y “
. . Males s ' 21.3° 223
i Females . B 23.6 24.8
v . «Refiring in 20 years ‘ . '
b - Males - S T -23.0 245
L Females i ’ 25.4 . 27.1
. - X
Sensitivity analysis . .
i . 2019 12018
o ’ . e oL £000 £000
Kl . " Discount rate +0.1% T . (80) (61)
~ Discount rate -0.1% 82 63
'Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 112 75
’ N Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (108) (73)




. e,

o~

n .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3N AUGUST 2019

u

21. .Pension commitments (continued)
. I

'The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

4 -,

+ Equities . . -
Gilts | e
Other bonds ..

Property ’ ; IR .

"Cash . o . ., L
Alternative assets -

* ‘Other managed funds * ° ,

D)
Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme asseié was £74,000 (2018 - £41,000).

a

At31 At31 August

A

. The amounts recognised in the Statement of IFinarfciaI'Activities are as follows:

“ . . ' 3

3
4

‘ ’:Curre;n service cost

e Past service cost ' '
Interest income
*Interest cost o .

ot . .~ |

. : . . e
A

.
[

At 1 September

Benefits paid T .
Employee contnbutlons -

Current service cost

Interest cost, ) .~ = _ ¢
Actuarial losses/(gains) .
,Past service costs. . ) '

‘At 31 August

‘Total amount recogmsed |n the Statemept of Fmanclal Actuvutles

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations’were as follows:

+August 2019 2018
o e
652,000 . 507,000
57,000 ', 43,000
58,000 47,000
83,000 71,000
30,000 © 27,000 -
101,000 " 72,000
. 53, 000 31,000
1,034,000 798,000
N |
2019 2018
(246,000)  (280,000)
- (44,000) -
23,000 17,000
(63,000) (60,000)
" (330,000)  (323,000)
. 2019 2018
S £
2,354,000 2,276,000
(23,0000 ° (1,000)
142,000 4o 000
246,000 280,000 _
63,000 60,000
321,000 (301,000).
44,000 . -
3,047,000 2,354,000
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“

: Pension cornmi'tments (confinued) .

Changes in the fair value of thelAca‘d'emy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows: ,

c

2019 2018
£ £
At 1 September_ , 798,000 582,000
. Interest income i . + 23,000 17,000
Benefits paid (23,000) ° (1,000)
Employee contnbutrons " * 42,000 40, 000
Actuarlal gains’ \ ‘ 51,000 24, 000
Employer contributions T . C - ' 143,000 136,000
At 31 August L - .= 1,034,000 798,000
Reconciliation of ope‘n‘ing to closing defined benefit pension scheme liability. ‘ .
' o , - © 2019 2018
.. _ v : h B . £ £
Balance brought forward at 1 September L 1,556;000' 1,694,000
Defined benefit penS|on scheme cost less contrlbutlons payable . 147,000, = 144,000
Def ned benefit pensmn scheme finance cost : " _ 40,000 43,000
Acturlal (gatns) / !osses R ‘ ' 270,000 (325,000)
Balance carrlend forward at 31 August” o ', 2,013,000 1,556,000
% e ~" . % ‘ -: 3 3
The amounts recognieed in the Balance Sheet are as follows: .
. Ty o _ 2019 ~ 2018
. : : £ £
Closing defined benefit scheme obligation ) '(3,047,000) (2,354,000)
Fair value of scheme assets’ 1,034,000 798,000
Net defined benefit pension scheme liability (2,013,000)  (1,556,000)

Members liability : ) P ‘ _ o

]

Each member of the chantable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound - up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a

before he/she ceases to be a member.

",“ - member, such amount as® may*be reqmred not exceedlng £10 for the debts’ and Ilablhtres contracted

L3

« o» .
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23. Related party transactions

.. No related party transactions took pla.cé'in the.périod of- account, other than, certain Trustees'
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 12. ’ .

v . € 1]

24. Cohpany limited by gua"raptee

R B

The Academy Trust is a c,c;mp_any limited by guérantee and does not have share E_:ap‘ital.

+

25. Controlling party

¥ .
. . L} v - .
+ There is no ultimate controlling party. . ’ ' s
' . N ; . N hd . ; .
r . . . N
v’ v
Al ? .
. ke ‘%
.
. 3
4
3 ' . . kY I3
= . ' A , L
']
. . “ ' '
“ - o + . . . . " L
B . ) c \ .
' - - ’-
* L3
. *
: t
-
, s '
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